VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION
PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Regular Meeting
AGENDA
November 24, 2021

8:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m.

Due to the Governor’'s Proclamation 20-28 et seq that temporarily waives and suspends sections of the
Open Public Meetings Act, the November 24, 2021, Board of Commissioners meeting is NOT being held

in person and will be held by remote participation only. The public can join via Zoom by visiting

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ktZ5N4Kbu Meeting ID: 834 2493 3036 or the call-in number is 253 215

8782.

10.

. Call to Order
. Swearing in New Commissioner Carolyn Brennan

. Approval of Minutes

a) October 27, 2021, Board Meeting

. Superintendent Report

a) Introduce Tina Sypaphay, new marketing Intern
b) Verdant Operations Update
¢) Community Outreach Update

Executive Committee Report

Finance Committee Report

a) Review financial statements and cash activity

b) Authorization of payment of vouchers and payroll

c) YTD Expenses as of October 2021

d) Resolution #R:2021-06 Asset Surplus

e) Resolution #R:2021-07 Appointment of Mary Jo
Jacobs as auditor

f) Kruger Repairs & Refresh update, Barb Nystrom
Coast Property Management

Program Committee Report

a) Conflicts of Interest

b) Superintendent’s Discretionary Funds

c) Review of 2021 and 2022 Budget Forecasting
d) Fluxx Presentation, Zoe Reese and Thea Walker
e) Verdant Program and Marketing Highlights

f) Introduction of Tina Sypaphay

Public Comments (limit 3 minutes per speaker)

. Commissioner Comments

Executive Session

a) To review and consider proposed sale of real estate

b) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for
public employment

ACTION TIME PAGE
--- 8:00 1-2
Action 8:01
8:06 3-6
Action
8:07
Information
Information 8:17
Information  8:19 7
Action 8:24 9-13
Information 8:26 14
Action 8:29 15-1
Action 8:30 20-2
Information 8:32
23-4
Information 8:42
Action 8:43
Information 8:48
Information 8:43
Information 9:03 41-42
Information 9:05
--- 9:07
--- 9:10
--- 9:15


https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ktZ5N4Kbu

11.0pen Session --- 9:45

12. Adjournment --- 9:50



PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

Commissioners
Present

Staff

Guests

Call to Order

Approval of
Minutes

Executive
Session

VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Regular Meeting
via Zoom
October 27, 2021
9:00 a.m.-10:30 a.m.

Bob Knowles, President (via Zoom)

Dr. Jim Distelhorst, Secretary (via Zoom)
Deana Knutsen, Commissioner (via Zoom)
Karianna Wilson, Commissioner (via Zoom)

Lisa Edwards, EdD, Superintendent (via Zoom)

Jennifer Piplic, Marketing Director (via Zoom)

Sue Waldin, Community Wellness Program Manager (via Zoom)
Nancy Budd, Community Social Worker (via Zoom)

Zoe Reese, Director of Community Impact (via Zoom)

Tammy Keuser, Director of Finance and Operations (via Zoom)
Sandra Huber, Community Engagement Manager (via Zoom)
Thea Walker, Intern (via Zoom)

Debbie Beaman, Interim Executive Assistant/Office Manager (via
Zoom)

Carl Zapora, community member (via Zoom)

Brad Berg, Foster Garvey (via Zoom)

Howard Thomas, HT Consulting (via Zoom)

Olympia Edwards, Project Girl Mentoring Program (via Zoom)

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Public
Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County, was called to order at
9:03 a.m. by President Knowles.

Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously to
approve the minutes of the Special Meeting on Saturday,
September 18, 2021. (E:80:21)

Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously to
approve the minutes of the Special Budget Meeting on
Wednesday, October 13, 2021. (E:81:21)

President Knowles recessed the regular meeting at 9:35 a.m.
into Executive Session to consider acquisition of Real Estate.
President Knowles announced that Executive Session would last
until approximately 9:45 a.m. and no action would be taken.
Executive Session was extended one time by President Knowles
until 9:55 a.m.

Regular meeting reconvened at 9:55 a.m. No action was taken.



Superintendent
Report

Executive
Commiittee
Report

Finance
Committee
Report

Authorization for
Payment of
Voucher and
Payroll

YTD Expenses for
September 2021

Resolution
2021:04
Approving the
dollar amount
and percentage
increase in the
District’s regular
property tax for
the calendar year
2022

Resolution
2021:05
Approving and
adopting the
District’s budget
and regular
property tax levy

Dr. Edwards recognized Ms. Waldin, who is retiring and has been
very instrumental in the success of Verdant. Ms. Reese is close
to launching Fluxx, Verdant’s new Grant Portal. Fluxx training for
staff and commissioners will take place in November. Ms. Piplic
is working on Verdant’s new website, and a preview may be
available in November. Dr. Edwards thanked Ms. Budd for her
outreach efforts and the full team for their hard work. Several
commissioners also thanked Ms. Waldin for everything she has
done for Verdant and the community.

Commissioner Knowles reported that the Executive Committee
met on Wednesday, October 20, 2021 to review the agenda for
the October 27, 2021 board meeting.

The Finance Committee met on Tuesday, October 12, 2021. Ms.
Keuser reviewed the financial statement and cash activity for
September 2021 and noted anything over $5,000 in payment
from the warrants. (E:82:21)

Authorization for payment of vouchers and payroll:

Warrant numbers 15088 through 15146 for September 2021 for
payment in the amount of $224,198.91 were presented for
approval by Commissioner Wilson (E:83:21) Motion was
made, seconded and passed unanimously to approve.

Ms. Keuser presented a pie chart representing YTD expenses as
of September 2021. (E:84:21) Starting January 2022 program
salaries will be put into program expenses and pulled out of
admin.

Mr. Berg explained Resolutions 2021:04 and 2021:05. Motion
was made, seconded and passed unanimously to approve.

Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously to
approve.



for the calendar
year 2022

Program
Committee
Update

Conflicts of
Interest

Video
Presentation

Modifications to
Contracts

Expiring
Contracts

Superintendent’s
Discretionary
Funds

Grantee
Highlights
Other items

Fluxx Grant
Portal

Commissioner Knutsen reported that the Program Committee
met on Thursday, October 14, 2021.

No conflicts of interest reported.

Ms. Reese presented Project Girl Mentoring Program Executive
Director Olympia Edwards and shared a video presentation of
their work and impact in our community.

The existing Boys and Girls Club of Snohomish County, Healthy
Habits contract from 9/1/2018-9/30/2021 totaled $295,000.
With this modification, staff request approval for an additional
three months of transitional funding, totaling $73,749.99
effective 10/1/21-12/31/21. Motion was made, seconded
and passed unanimously to approve.

University of Washington Bothell, Peer Advocate Behavioral
Health Training Program contract from 7/1/21-6/30/22 totals
$90,536. With this modification, staff request approval of a
reallocation of $12,000 to support a lead Promotora. This does
not change the total dollar amount of the contract. Motion was
made, seconded and passed unanimously to approve.

All expiring grant partners have been notified of the process to
reapply.

Ms. Reese presented newly funded contracts as of 8/31/21.
(E:85:21) Helping Hands Project Organization, Basic Needs for
South Snohomish County, 9/15/2021-12/31/2021, total funding
amount of $10,000. Motion was made, seconded and passed
unanimously to approve.

Ms. Reese reported on recent grantee report highlights.

Things are progressing well with the early implementation, and
training will be in November.

Ms. Reese presented the Committed Program Funding schedule
as of September 2021. Ms. Reese presented a graph of grant



Review of 2021
and 2022 Budget
Forecasting

Official meeting
ended

Public Comments

Commissioner
Comments

Adjournment

ATTEST BY:

funds that specifies program area and committed funds for
2021-2022. (E:86:21)

See exhibit (E:87:21) for updates on program staff and
marketing highlights.

Commissioners Knowles and Wilson had other meetings at 10:30
a.m. and were excused from the meeting at that time. Secretary
Distelhorst then presided over the meeting.

None

Commissioners Knutsen and Distelhorst expressed appreciation
for all the work the staff is doing. Commissioners Knutsen and
Distelhorst each thanked Olympia Edwards for the work Project
Girl is doing.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:52 a.m. by Commissioner
Distelhorst.

President

Secretary



Accrual Basis

1 ASSETS

2 Current Assets

3 Cash Balance

4 Other Current Assets
5 Total Current Assets

6 Total Long-term & Fixed Assets
7 TOTAL ASSETS

8 LIABILITIES & EQUITY

9 Liabilities

10 Current Liabilities

11 Long-term Liabilities

12 Total Liabilities
13 Total Equity
14 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1 INCOME
Ordinary Income

N

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
Depreciation Expense
Program Expenses

N oo s~ W

Total Expenses

8 OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)

9 Total Other Income/(Expense)
10 NET INCOME/(LOSS)

Normalizing Items

Public Hospital District #2, Snohomish County
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2021
A B C D
Dec 31, 2020 Oct 31, 2021 $ Change Comments:
3,404,411 2,147,997 (1,256,414) 1m paid to Seamar BHC
55,995,957 56,087,992 92,036 Includes Investments & Prepaid Expenses
59,400,367 58,235,989 (1,164,378)
43,056,966 41,746,625 (1,310,342) Net of Accumulated Depreciation
102,457,334 99,982,614 (2,474,720)
1,421,828 1,310,500 (111,329) Swedish prepaid rent for November
1,421,828 1,310,500 (111,329)
101,035,505 98,672,114 (2,363,391) Annual Net Income/(Loss)
102,457,334 99,982,614 (2,474,720)

Profit & Loss

October 31, 2021
A B C D E F
Oct Actual Oct Budget Fav/(Unfav) YTD Actual YTD Budget Fav/(Unfav)

958,698 962,403 (3,705) 9,438,561 9,762,382 (323,821)
223,307 207,437 (15,869) 2,331,503 2,301,477 (30,026)
118,944 108,735 (10,209) 1,189,585 1,136,354 (53,231)
692,328 783,875 91,547 10,027,674 9,656,746 (370,929)
1,034,579 1,100,047 65,469 13,548,763 13,094,577 (454,186)
17,335 280,833 (263,499) 1,778,861 2,863,333 (1,084,472)
(58,546) 143,189 (201,735) (2,331,341) (468,861) (1,862,480)

Building Healthy Communities 1,402,500 0 1,402,500
Election Costs 117,356 50,000 67,356
CHART 54,497 - 54,497
Value Village 0 295,323 (295,323)
Normalized Net Income/(Loss) (42,803)

Monthly Highlights
October 31, 2021

Verdant received dividend payments of $34K, a realized loss of $25.6K and an unrealized loss of $192.1K on our investment portfolio which closed

with an ending market value of $55,474,351.

Program grant commitments total $6,946,462 for 2021 excluding BHCF. Additional 2021 funding for COVID-19 programs total $955.5K.

Revenue of $123.1K and expenses of $92.9K from the Kruger Clinic were incurred, netting to an additional operating income of $30.2K.

DRAFT



Public Hospital District #2

Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee Amount Purpose
Warrant Activity:
15147 10/06/2021 All City Fence Co. 337.82  October 2021 Fence Rental
15148 10/06/2021 Armstrong Services 1,280.00  Monthly Janitorial and Daily Disinfection Service - October 2021
15149 10/06/2021 Cloud Tree LLC 937.50 Development for digital workshops
15150 10/06/2021 Coast Property Management 1,750.00 Property Management
15151 10/06/2021 Comcast - Acct # 8498310221378586 299.58 8498 31 022 1378586
15152 10/06/2021 Consolidated Landscape Maintenance, Inc. 440.90 Landscaping October 2021
15153 10/06/2021 Edgework, Crisis Intervention Resrcs PLLC 2,945.00 One day verbal de-escaglation training titled "Cooling the Flames"
15154 10/06/2021 ELTEC Systems, LLC 305.25  October 2021 Elevator Maintenance
15155 10/06/2021 Margot Helphand 2,475.00 Facilitation of Board Retreat, planning, and follow up
15156 10/06/2021 Pacific Medical Centers(PacMed) 328.53  WC 339 - Cooking Demo: Immune health & Food costs associated
15157 10/06/2021 Snohomish County PUD 912.12  Electricity - Acct number 205299316
15158 10/06/2021 The Extra Step, LLC 54,497.29 Phase 1 payment for CHART Leadership Program pilot
15159 10/06/2021 Turner HR Services, Inc. 562.50 HR Consulting - September 2021
15160 10/13/2021 Allstream 59.68  Account #1299089 10/3/21 - 11/2/21
15161 10/13/2021 Compensation Venture Group, SPC 3,500.00 Compensation survey opinion letter
15162 10/13/2021 DocuSign 2,988.66  One-year subscription and support 7/22/21 - 7/21/22
15163 10/13/2021 Dynamic Computing, Inc. 262.44 1T Consulting Services
15164 10/13/2021 PalAmerica Security Inc. 510.00  August Parking Lot Security
15165 10/13/2021 Snohomish County PUD 1,125.61  Electricity - Acct number 222825879
15166 10/13/2021 Sound Dietitians LLC 1,995.07 Internal Programs
15167 10/13/2021 Terra Services, Inc. 361.28 Temporary Exec Asst/Office Manager - Week ending 10/3/21
15168 10/13/2021 Velia Cervantes Lara 4,350.00 WC 340- Spanmish Positive Discipline & Reparemting oiurselves; MC 1008- Parent summit 2021
15169 10/13/2021 Verizon 474.75  October 2 - November 1, 2021 phone charges
15170 10/13/2021 Washington Family Engagement 1,800.00 Sponsorship of mental health event on 10/12/21
15171 10/20/2021 Aukema & Associates 5,000.00 Website Design & Development project - 3rd payment
15172 10/20/2021 Comcast - Acct # 905447969 574.45 905447969
15173 10/20/2021 Edmonds School District No. 15 3,040.13  WC 296 Part of Family Mental Health Workshops grant
15174 10/20/2021 Guardian Security Systems, Inc. 8,560.66  JC Security Installation & monitoring for October
15175 10/20/2021 Payden & Rygel 9,287.00  9/1-9/30/2021 Investment Advisory Services
15176 10/20/2021 Principal Life Insurance Co. 2,107.99 1019549-10001
15177 10/20/2021 Safeway 990.00 Food Insecurity Nutrition Incentive - September 2021
15178 10/20/2021 Seattle Food Nut 300.00  WC 344 - Nutrition Programming - Virtural nutrition education 'Sports Nutrition Basics for Teen...
15179 10/20/2021 Sound Publishing, Inc. 100.80 Legal Notice 9/29/2021 - 10/6/21 Special Meeting 2022 Budget
15180 10/20/2021 Terra Services, Inc. 1,926.80 Temporary Exec Asst/Office Manager - Week ending 10/10/21
15181 10/26/2021 Angelica Hildebrandt 1,160.00 W346 - #3 & W338

Transaction



Warrant Activity (continued):

15182
15183
15184
15185
15186
15187
15188
15189
15190
15191

Date Payee Amount Purpose
10/26/2021 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 593.48  Contract #: 852451-1 Copier Lease October 2021
10/26/2021 City of Lynnwood - Utilities 144.84 Irrigation base and usage 5/5/21 - 7/7/21
10/26/2021 Consolidated Landscape Maintenance, Inc. 160.23  Fall Shut Off
10/26/2021 Dynamic Computing, Inc. 2,274.75 IT Consulting Services
10/26/2021 Leadership Snohomish County 3,500.00 2021 - 2022 Equity Cohort Tuition - Sandra Huber
10/26/2021 Seattle Food Nut 397.79  WC 344 - Nutrition Programming - Virtural nutrition education 'Sweet and Savory Buckwheat Crepes"
10/26/2021 Staples 614.74  9/10 - 10/10/21
10/26/2021 Terra Services, Inc. 1,926.80 Temporary Exec Asst/Office Manager - Week ending 10/17/21
10/26/2021 City of Lynnwood - Utilities 367.37  Water/Sewer 5/5/21 - 7/7/21
10/26/2021 City of Lynnwood - Utilities 236.08  Storm Drain 5/5/21 - 7/7/21

Total Warrants 127,762.89



Transaction

Wire/ACH Activity:

Date Payee Amount Purpose
10/04/2021 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 192.31 Flexible Spending - Claim Reimbursement
10/08/2021 Valic 3,547.02 Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
10/12/2021 Wells Fargo 398.80 Service Charge
10/13/2021 Wells Fargo Merchant Services 84.27 Service Charge
10/01/2021 ADP 65.55 Payroll Processing Fees
10/29/2021 ADP 65.55 Payroll Processing Fees
10/06/2021 Paychex 25,614.69 Payroll
10/07/2021 Paychex 141.60 Payroll Processing Fees
10/20/2021 Paychex 682.07 Payroll Taxes
10/07/2021 Paychex 9,729.68 Payroll Taxes
10/21/2021 Paychex 9,573.02 Payroll Taxes
10/12/2021 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 536.55 Flexible Spending - Claim Reimbursement
10/13/2021 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 34.50 Flexible Spending - Claim Reimbursement
10/20/2021 Paychex 25,421.46 Payroll
10/27/2021 WA State Department of Revenue 790.23 B&O/Retailing Sales Tax for September 2021
10/20/2021 Paychex 96.36 Payroll Processing Fees
10/31/2021 Paychex 8,735.98 Payroll Taxes
10/21/2021 Paychex 141.60 Payroll Processing Fees
10/18/2021 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 245.94 Flexible Spending - Claim Reimbursement
10/25/2021 AmeriFlex Business Solutions 67.98 Flexible Spending - Claim Reimbursement

Total Wire/ACH Activity 86,165.16
Transaction
Date Payee Amount Purpose
10/15/2021  Cancer Lifeline 1,166.66  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Cascade Bicycle Club Education Foundation 2,666.67  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Center for Human Services 43,384.32  Program Payment
10/15/2021  ChildStrive 52,127.99  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Cocoon House. 8,750.00  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Community Health Center of Snohomish Co 43,722.72  Program Payment
10/15/2021 ~ Compass Health 12,635.58  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Concern for Neighbors Food Bank 200.00  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Domestic Violence Services Snohomish Co 14,666.66  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Edmonds College Foundation 14,212.50  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Edmonds School District No. 15 122,383.75  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Evergreen Recovery Centers 29,533.33  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Gambian Talents Promotion 9,550.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021  Homage Senior Services 64,309.10  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Interfaith Family Shelter 833.00  Program Payment
10/15/2021  Jean Kim Foundation 20,552.75  Program Payment

10



10/15/2021 Kindering 12,500.00  Program Payment
10/15/2021 Korean Community Serv. Center 9,583.33 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Korean Women's Association 5,000.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Latino Educational Training Institute 28,900.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Lynnwood Food Bank 839.58 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Medical Teams International 12,500.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Millenia Ministries 12,452.08 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Pacific Treatment Alternatives 11,800.58 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Parent Trust for WA Children 5,658.33 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Prescription Drug Assistance Foundation 4,583.33 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Project Access Northwest 14,583.33 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Project Girl Mentoring Program 26,276.66 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Puget Sound Christian Clinic 53,550.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021  Snohomish County Legal Services 4,166.66  Program Payment
10/15/2021 South County Fire 19,771.66 Program Payment
10/15/2021 Therapeutic Health Services 15,512.42 Program Payment
10/15/2021 University of WA 7,554.67 Program Payment
10/15/2021 WA Kids in Transition 10,416.66 Program Payment
10/15/2021 ~ Wonderland Child & Family Services 23,513.58  Program Payment
10/15/2021 YMCA of Greater Seattle. 7,775.00 Program Payment
10/15/2021 YWCA of Seattle, King and Snohomish Co 7.,720.42 Program Payment
Total Wires/ACH Transactions 735,353.32
Transaction
Date Payee Amount
Kruger Clinic Activity:
1013 - 1037
misc Various Vendors 42,972.03 Administered by Coast Property Management
Work Comp Activity:
305517
misc Various Claimants/Vendors 887.90 Administered by Eberle Vivian
Total Disbursements 993,141.30

11



Deposits:

Transaction

Date Payer Amount Purpose
10/04/2021 Edmonds Medical Clinic 2,752.71  Monthly Rent
10/05/2021 Raymond Liu, DDS 2,593.87  Monthly Rent
10/12/2021 Wells Fargo Merchant Services 59.64 Class action settlement
10/13/2021 Edmonds Medical Clinic 4,663.72  Monthly Rent
10/28/2021 Puget Sound Gastro 35,891.89  Monthly Rent
10/13/2021 Allied Dermatology Partners 7,595.38  Monthly Rent
10/08/2021 Snohomish County 43,675.12  Tax Levy Payment
10/26/2021 Edmonds School District 130,412.81  Refund of Grant funds not used
10/27/2021 Swedish Edmonds Hospital 830,540.32 Monthly Rent
10/27/2021 Swedish Edmonds Children's 22,203.32  Monthly Rent
10/27/2021 Swedish Edmonds Kruger Clinic 49,339.52  Monthly rent

12



VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION
PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT #2
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

WARRANT APPROVAL

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of Public Hospital District #2 of Snohomish
County, Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter specified
have been received and that Warrant Numbers 15147 through 15191 have been issued for
payment in the amount of $127,762.89. These warrants are hereby approved.

Attest:

Tammy Keuser Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Warrants Processed: 10-01-2021 — 10-31-2021 $127,762.89
Work Comp Claims Pd: 10-01-2021 — 10-31-2021 887.90
Kruger Clinic Processed: 10-01-2021 — 10-31-2021 42,972.03
Payroll: 09-19-2021 — 10-02-2021 25,614.69
10-03-2021 — 10-16-2021 25,421.46
51,036.15
Electronic Payments/ Payroll Taxes 28,720.75
Adjustments: Payroll Processing 510.66
Valic Retirement 3,547.02
FSA Payments 1,077.28
Bank Fees and Supplies 483.07
WA State Dept Revenue 790.23
Program Expenditures 735,353.32
770,482.33

Grand Total

$993,141.30

13



M Total Salaries & Wages

Verdant YTD expenses October 2021

Total Other
7%
Bfessional Services Total Salaries & Waggs™

Total Program Expenditures
81%

Total Employee Benefits M Total Program Expenditures B Total Professional Services

M Total Other

14



PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06

A RESOLUTION of the Commission of Public Hospital
District No. 2, Snohomish County, Washington (the “District”),
determining certain personal property to be surplus and no longer
required for public hospital district purposes of the District and
authorizing the superintendent and such District personnel as the
superintendent may designate to sell all or any part of such property
on a negotiated basis.

WHEREAS, certain personal property of the District is no longer required for District
purposes and the Commission wishes to dispose of such property in a lawful manner as promptly
as reasonably possible; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT
NO. 2, SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON, as follows:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined, and declared that the personal property
identified on Exhibit A hereto (the “Surplus Property”) is no longer required for public hospital
district purposes and such property therefore is surplus. It is further found and declared to be in
the best interest of the District that the Surplus Property be disposed of promptly as hereinafter
provided.

Section 2. The superintendent and such District personnel as the superintendent may

designate are hereby authorized and directed to sell the Surplus Property on a negotiated basis on
the most favorable terms they deem obtainable.

15



ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Commission of Public Hospital District No. 2,
Snohomish County, Washington, at a regular open public meeting thereof this 24™ day of
November 2021, the following Commissioners being present and voting.

President and Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Secretary and Commissioner

16



Exhibit A

Swedish Edmonds
Disposition of District Assets

Date: October 8, 2021

To: Public Hospital District #2 of Snohomish County
Verdant Health Commission
Attn: Finance

RE: Request disposition of asset

Asset Description:

NUM DEPT DESCRIP SERIALNUM PO QTY  ACQDT COST
8903801 7075 CRYOSTAT GE MEDICAL SYSTEMS 7/1/2008 23,673.36
Submitted by: Lori Wise, Director of Finance

Section 4.9 Major Decisions. Except for the Major Decisions in section 4.9, Swedish may make all
decisions regarding operation of the hospital and other leased Assets (a) Disposition of any of
the District assets, including without limitation and all equipment, fixtures, trade fixtures and
other assets in or on the leased real property

17



TEIIFE

18



19



PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07

A RESOLUTION of the Commission of Public Hospital District No. 2,
Snohomish County, Washington, appointing and designating Mary Jo Jacobs as
Hospital District Auditor and authorizing Bank of America, N.A., to honor her
facsimile signature in that capacity; and removing Tammy Keuser as Hospital
District Auditor.

BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish
County, Washington, as follows:

Section 1. Mary Jo Jacobs is found to be a person experienced in accounting and
business practices, and is hereby appointed and designated Hospital District Auditor as of
November 24, 2021, to perform under the direction of the Superintendent and Chief Executive
Officer the duties set forth in Article III, Section 2, of the Bylaws of the District, a municipal
corporation.

Section 2. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the “Bank™), as a designated depository of this
municipal corporation, and its correspondent banks are hereby requested, authorized and directed
to honor all checks and warrants drawn in the District's name on its respective accounts with the
Bank (including those drawn to the individual order of any person or persons whose names
appear thereon as signer or signers thereof) when bearing or purporting to bear the facsimile
signature of the following:

MARY JO JACOBS, Hospital District Auditor,

and the Bank (including its correspondent banks) shall be entitled to honor and to charge this
municipal corporation for all such checks and warrants regardless of by whom or by what means
the actual or purported facsimile signature or signatures thereon may have been affixed thereto,
if such facsimile signature or signatures resemble the facsimile specimens from time to time filed
with the Bank by the Secretary or other authorized officer of the District; and further that all
previous authorizations for the signing and honoring of such checks and warrants for the
payment of the money drawn on the Bank by the District are continued in full force and effect as
amplified hereby; that this authority shall continue in force until notice in writing of its
revocation shall have been given to and received by the Bank; and that all transactions aforesaid
which previously have taken place are hereby confirmed and ratified.

Section 3. Tammy Keuser is hereby removed as the Hospital District Auditor effective as

of November 24, 2021. The Superintendent is authorized and directed to notify the Bank in
writing that Tammy Keuser has been removed as Hospital District Auditor.

20



ADOPTED and APPROVED by the Commission of Public Hospital District No. 2,
Snohomish County, Washington, at a regular open public meeting thereof this 24th day of

November, 2021, the following Commissioners being present and voting.

President and Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Secretary and Commissioner

21



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, Secretary of Public Hospital District No. 2. Snohomish County,
Washington (the “District”), hereby certify as follows:

1. The attached copy of Resolution No. 2021-07 is a full, true and correct copy of a
resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Commission of the District held at the
regular meeting place thereof on November 24, 2021, as that Resolution appears on the minute
book of the District; and

2. A quorum of the members of the Commission of the District was present
throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of the Commission voted in the proper
manner for the adoption of the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 24th day of November,
2021.

PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

Secretary of the Commission

22



Program Committee- November 2021

l. Modifications to Contracts-for Review

None

1. Expiring Contracts

All grantees with contracts expiring before 3/1/2022 have been notified to apply for renewal during the

November 8-19% application cycle.

Project Girl and VOA (211/CRA) will submit their Year 2 outcomes and budget for review and approval at the

December Program Committee and Board meetings.

1. Superintendent’s Discretionary

Newly Funded:

Organization Project Time period Total Funding Status
Refugee & Afghan Community 11/1/2021- $15,000 Contract Included in
Immigration Navigator 12/31/2021 packet
Services NW
Total $15,000

Ideas in Progress

None

If funded as presented, Superintendent’s Discretionary Funds unallocated balance for 2021: $34,460.37 (please
note, we received refunds from budget surplus totaling $50,858 that have been added back to the available
funding balance and have re-allocated portions of Compass Embedded Social Worker funding to 2021 budget).

We plan to open applications for 2022 COVID funding (following new monthly Board approval process) in Fluxx
mid-December.

V. Q4 Grantmaking
i. Non-renewal procedures

V. Recent Grantee Report highlights

ii. Fluxx Scoring Training

Evergreen Recovery Center

New provider and support staff have been hired!

Two MCOs (United and CHPW) are already paying for some new services and contracts (and codes
and rate sheets) with Molina and Amerigroup are in process and working to add new scopes of
services to existing contracts

Implementing new appointing/billing software with go-live on 1/3 which includes new medical
features like e-labs, e-rx, medical records and billing functions.
Open House will be taking place in early December to highlight the new walk-in access and services

Millennia Ministries

23




At 6 months, are exceeding all mid-year goals for their funded work including:
o number of households served (2,662, 111% of midyear goal)
o Housing advocacy clients (108, 160% of midyear goal)
o Moving from Surviving to Thriving Clients 916, 160% of midyear goal)

24



DRAFT Non-renewal Guidelines

The Verdant Health Commission is dedicated to creating a transition plan with each grant partner after
Verdant’s grant funding ends. The following guidelines are designed to assist with planning for this
transition while providing sufficient notification that allows grantees to identify and secure alternate
sources of funding. The goal is to have a consistent and transparent methodology in making and
communicating non-renewal decisions as well as in the provision of any transition funds.

All current grantees will be regularly reminded of the date of expiration of their current contract and
annual opportunities for renewal requests will be evaluated as part of the quarterly application process.
All contracts include language that continued funding is contingent upon successfully meeting included
program outcomes, budgets, and other contract terms.

Cause(s) for non-renewal
¢ Outcomes not achieved with previous contract
e Availability of Verdant funds
e Changing strategic priorities (based on CHNA, annual Board strategic plan and priorities,
etc)
e Other (including, but not limited to, grant partner’s adherence to budget)

Transition Funding providing following notice of non-renewal

One-time payments will be provided to non-renewal partners based on the duration of the funding for
the specific program via contract amendment (fluxx)/Grant Modification process (current) approved
monthly by Board.

e 5-10years > 6 months of transition funding not to exceed $150,000
e 2-4vyears >3 months of transition funding not to exceed $50,000
e Lessthan 2 years > 1 month of transition funding not to exceed $25,000

Ability to reapply in future
Organizations are not prohibited from seeking future funding or alternative funding sources
(BHCF, COVID, event sponsorship, etc), although if non-renewal is due to changing strategic
priorities, they are unlikely to have a competitive request for any funding availability until/if
priorities change or if the request is a new scope of work

Resources available
e Funders roundtables will be offered quarterly to introduce grantees to new funders.
e Grantees will be introduced to potential strategic partners

Staying connected
Our hope is that organizations with unsuccessful renewal applications will remain active
participants in the Verdant community and engage in opportunities such as VPR, outreach
events, and training/technical assistance opportunities provided.

25



Total

Current Contract Year of |Years of
Annual Expiration |expiring |funding | Total funding
Agency Program Award Date contract [received [received
Whole Patient Services for
Cancer Lifeline Cancer Patients S 14,000.00 9/30/2022 1 1 S 14,000.00
Cascade Bicycle Club [Let's Go Edmonds! S 50,000.00 | 12/31/2022 1 11 $ 391,045.00
Center for Human
Services Youth Counseling Program | $350,000.00 [ 8/31/2022 1 9| $2,186,852.00
CHC Snohomish Dental Program (invoice-
County based) $100,195.00 | 8/31/2022 4 8| $§ 525,195.00
Childstrive Early Intervention $328,484.00 | 3/31/2022 1 4| $1,293,890.00
ChildStrive Nurse Family Partnership $305,964.00 | 12/31/2022 3 12| $2,821,348.92
Host Home Family
Cocoon House Reunification Pilot $105,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1| $ 105,000.00
Emergency Motel Voucher
Compass Health Program S 27,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 2[ S 79,250.00
Community Transition
Compass Health Program (CRP) $151,626.00 | 7/30/2022 1 6| S 938,381.00
Concern for Client Experience and
Neighbors Foodbank |Healthy Choice S 8,430.00 | 12/31/2021 2 2| § 49,955.00
DVS Community Advocate S 96,000.00 |12/31/2021 3 3| $ 288,000.00
Education, Outreach, and
DVS Prevention S 80,000.00 | 9/30/2022 1 10 § 271,955.00
Edmonds Food Bank |Making Healthy Choices S 20,000.00 | 2/28/2022 3 3 S 50,000.00
Edmonds School
District Family Resource Advocate $180,000.00 | 9/30/2022 1 3 S 540,000.00
Edmonds School
District Move60! $838,605.00 | 8/31/2022 2 12| $6,268,549.00
Edmonds School Distri|Student Support Advoates | $450,000.00 | 12/31/2021 3 8| $3,466,758.00
Edmonds Senior
Center Enhance Wellness/PEARLS | $115,992.00 | 12/31/2021 4 10| $ 813,324.00
Evergreen Recovery |Bidirectional Substance Use
Center Treatment Program $354,400.00 | 6/30/2022 1 1| $ 354,400.00
Foundation for Mental Health Expansion
Edmonds College College $170,550.00 | 6/30/2022 1 1l § 170,550.00
Foundation for
Edmonds School Summer Meals and
District Wellness Program S 20,000.00 | 12/31/2021 3 5 S 70,650.00
Girls on the Run/Heart and
Girls on the Run Sole S 24,605.00 | 9/30/2022 1 6 S 91,855.00
Homage Senior
Services Community Life Center $628,095.00 | 12/31/2021 3 9| $5,135,579.00
Homage Senior Servicq Care Coordination $147,918.96 | 12/31/2022 3 12| $1,245,469.92
Interfaith Family
Shelter Homelessness Prevention S 10,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1l $ 10,000.00
Jean Kim Foundation |Hygiene Center $246,633.00 | 9/30/2022 1 1| § 246,633.00

26




Kindering Early Intervention $150,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 7| S 895,387.00
Korean Community |Mind Body and Soul for
Service Center Korean Americans $115,000.00 | 9/30/2022 1 1| § 115,000.00
Korean Women's
Association Everyday Prevention S 60,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 5| S 300,000.00
Lahai Health Dental Program $380,000.00 | 6/30/2022 1 7| $2,242,550.00
Lahai Health Behavioral Health Program | $ 79,600.00 | 9/30/2022 1 6| S 247,600.00
Lahai Health Mobile Medical Program $187,999.92 | 12/31/2022 3 11| $1,235,099.92
LETI Family Success/Promotora S 88,800.00 | 6/30/2022 1 1l § 88,800.00
Lynnwood Foodbank |Focus on Nutrition S 15,624.96 | 12/15/2021 3 4/ $ 51,200.00
Medical Teams
International Care & Connect $150,000.00 | 9/30/2022 1 111 $ 791,700.00
Millennia Ministries |Mobile Manna/MFSTT $149,425.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1] $ 149,425.00
Pacific Treatment Mobile Syringe Service
Alternatives Exchange $141,606.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1| $ 141,606.00
Parent Trust Conscious Fathering S 7,900.00 | 9/30/2022 1 5 S 27,900.00
Prescription Drug Prescription Drug
Assistance Program  [Assistance Network S 55,000.00 | 9/15/2022 3 10{ S 475,000.00

Specialty Care for
Project Access NW Uninsured $175,000.00 | 6/30/2022 1 10| $1,060,000.00
Project Girl Immersion Lab $157,660.00 | 12/31/2021 1 1] $ 157,660.00
Snohomish County
Legal Services Housing Justice Project S 50,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1l § 50,000.00
South County Fire Veterans in Prevention S 89,175.00 | 12/31/2022 3 7| S 546,654.96

Community Resource
South County Fire Paramedic $351,900.00 | 12/31/2022 1 9| $2,386,752.00
Therapeutic Health
Services Interated BH in ESD $186,149.00 | 6/30/2022 1 7| $1,586,149.00
University of Peer Advocate Training
Washington Program S 90,656.00 | 6/30/2022 1 1/ $ 90,656.00
Volunteers of AmericalECC 211 S 95,500.00 | 12/31/2021 1 7| § 650,876.00
Washington West
African Center Drop-in Center $114,600.00 | 9/30/2022 1 1| § 114,600.00
Wonderland Youth
and Family Services |Hope RISING Clinic $195,000.00 | 12/31/2022 1 4| $ 700,610.00
YMCA Emergency Shelter $ 30,000.00 | 3/31/2022 1 11 $ 30,000.00
YMCA Access to Healthcare S 62,645.00 | 3/31/2022 1 1l § 62,645.00

Average Current Annual

Award $160,054.78

Median Current Annual

Award $114,800.00

Average Total Years of

funding received 5

Average total funding

received $832,530.21

27




DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE COVID-19 RESPONSE: AFGHAN FAMILY
NAVIGATION PROGRAM

This Agreement is made between Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County,
Washington and the REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST to provide a
COVID-19 Response Program.

1. PARTIES

1.1 Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County, Washington (“PHD2”),
a public hospital district formed under Chapter 70.44 RCW; and

1.2 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST, a Washington
State non-profit organization.

2. PURPOSE AND PROGRAM

2.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to enable REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT
SERVICES NORTHWEST to provide a COVID-19 Response Program (“the Program”) for the
benefit of PHD2 residents.

2.2 Gov. Jay Inslee declared a State of Emergency Proclamation on July 1,
2020 that remains in effect. In response to COVID 19 and this proclamation, The Program is
designed to: support recently arrived Afghani families settling in South Snohomish County in
accessing and implementing resources such as housing, food, preventive healthcare services, and
enrollment of children in Head Start and Edmonds School District schools. An Afghani
Community Navigator will be a settled Afghani individual who will support individuals and
families in navigating the complex processes of gaining and using benefits and assisting them in
selecting and utilizing primary medical, dental, and behavioral health homes as needed,
identifying markets where they can utilize snap benefits to purchase culturally appropriate food
items, providing 1:1 and group mentorship and support, and assuring that school-age children are
enrolled in appropriate academic settings.

3. AUTHORITY

3.1 PHD?2 is authorized under RCW 70.44.240 to “contract” with any “legal
entity” to “provide any hospital or other health care facilities or other health care services to be
used by individuals, districts, hospitals, or others, including providing health care maintenance
services.” RCW 70.44.007 defines “other health care services” to include “services that promote
health, wellness, and prevention of illness and injury.”

32 The REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST is
established with a mission to empower refugees, immigrants and their families to become self-
sufficient and healthy, contributing members of society.

28



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

4. TERM AND TERMINATION

4.1 The Agreement will begin on the date of the second signature on this
Agreement.

4.2 The period for providing the Program is scheduled to begin on November
1, 2021 and continue through December 31, 2021.

4.3 The Agreement will end when the final reporting by the REFUGEE &
IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST is accepted and approved by PHD2.

S. OBLIGATIONS OF PHD2

5.1 PHD2 will fund the Program provided by REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT
SERVICES NORTHWEST based on the following budget. Variances of more than 10% on a
budget line item must be approved by PHD?2 in writing.

11/1/2021-12/31/2021
Personnel Expenses $8,000
Direct Project Expenses $7,000
Administrative Expenses $0
Sub contractual Expenses $0
Other Expenses $0
Total $15,000

52 PHD2 will fund the COVID-19 Response AFGHAN FAMILY
NAVIGATION PROGRAM provided by REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES
NORTHWEST as a single payment of fifteen thousand dollars and no cents ($15,000) to be paid
on November 15, 2021.

53  Templates for required reporting by REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT
SERVICES NORTHWEST will be provided to REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES
NORTHWEST by PHD2.

6. OBLIGATIONS OF REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES
NORTHWEST

6.1 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will coordinate
the Program including: supporting recently arrived Afghani families settling in South Snohomish
County in accessing and implementing resources such as housing, food, preventive healthcare
services, and enrollment of children in Head Start and Edmonds School District schools. An
Afghani Community Navigator will be a settled Afghani individual who will support individuals

29



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

and families in navigating the complex processes of gaining and using benefits and assisting
them in selecting and utilizing primary medical, dental, and behavioral health homes as needed,
identifying markets where they can utilize snap benefits to purchase culturally appropriate food
items, providing 1:1 and group mentorship and support, and assuring that school-age children are
enrolled in appropriate academic settings.

6.2 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will submit a report of activities
carried out under the Program including summaries of results to PHD2 by January 31, 2022. At
a minimum, REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will track and report to
PHD?2 the following and any other relevant tracking data collected and compiled by REFUGEE
& IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST during the course and scope of the Program.

Metric Goal
Number of People Served: 10 PHD?2 families
Participants enrolled in available benefits 100% of participants will be enrolled in

available benefits

Participants with a primary care appointment | 80% of participants will have a PCP
appointment scheduled

Children enrolled in pre-school or ESD 90% of children will be enrolled in an
school academic program

Participants provided 1:1 support by 100% of participants receive 1:1 support
Navigator

Participants provided group support and 100% of participants receive group support

community connections

REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will make itself available for virtual
conversations on progress toward achieving the outcomes listed in this Agreement at the request
of PHD2.

6.3 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will comply
with all local, state and federal laws including, if applicable, the federal Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”).

6.4  REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will use the
funds provided by PHD2 only for the Program and will return any portion of the payments that
are not used for the Program on or before delivery of the report due on January 31, 2022.

6.5 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will give credit
(logo or language) to PHD2 (“Verdant”) in its publicity vehicles about this program, including,
but not limited to, press releases, annual reports, newsletters, websites, brochures and fliers.
Credit should also be given in newspaper interviews about the program. Electronic
communications/websites should also include a link to PHD2’s website. The use of PHD2’s
logo, when appropriate, is encouraged. PHD2 can provide black-and-white or color versions in
digital format.

30



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

6.6 REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST recognizes that
PHD2 is a public agency subject to audit by the Washington State Auditor. REFUGEE &
IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will provide PHD2 with any accessible information
that PHD2 is requested to provide to the Washington State Auditor or otherwise required to
provide to the State of Washington or to the Federal Government or pursuant to the Washington
Public Records Act. Such information typically includes this Agreement, REFUGEE &
IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST budget tracking regarding the use of PHD2 funds,
and tracking records supporting the outcomes reported to PHD2 pursuant to this Agreement.

6.7  If REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST determines a
breach of this Agreement has occurred, that is, JKF has failed to comply with any terms or
conditions of this Agreement or has failed to provide in any manner the work or services agreed
to herein, REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will notify PHD2 in writing
of the nature of the breach within fourteen (14) calendar days if the deliverables are not on track
to be met as anticipated. REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will develop a
corrective action plan within fourteen (14) calendar days of delivering notice of the nature of the
breach and will specify the proposed completion date for bringing the Agreement into
compliance. Determination of sufficiency of the corrective action plan shall be at the sole
discretion of PHD2. In the event a corrective action plan isn’t submitted, or the plan is
determined by PHD2 to be insufficient, PHD2 reserves the right to suspend or terminate this
Agreement for performance or other reasons solely at the discretion of PHD2.

7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

7.1 Relationship of the Parties. The relationship created between PHD2 and
REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST in this Agreement is strictly that of
independent contractors. The Agreement creates no partnership or joint venture between the
parties, nor may any officer or employee of one party be considered to be an employee or agent
of the other. Further, the Agreement provides no rights to any third parties and may not be relied
on by any other person or entity.

7.2 Applicable Law. The Agreement is entered under the laws of the State of
Washington. Any litigation arising from this Agreement must be filed in Snohomish County
Superior Court.

7.3  Liability and Insurance. REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES
NORTHWEST will indemnify, defend and hold PHD2 harmless from any claims, lawsuits or
other actions, and judgments arising in any way from the Program provided under this
Agreement. REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST will maintain a liability
insurance policy of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence during the term of the Agreement and
provide proof of coverage upon request of PHD2.

7.4  Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement is complete and
integrates all understandings between the parties. No amendment or other change to the
Agreement will be binding on either party unless agreed to in writing and signed by each party.

31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

7.5 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction rules any part of this
Agreement to be invalid, the remainder of the Agreement will still be in full force and effect.

7.6  Force Majeure. Neither party will be in default or liable for failure to
perform its obligations under this Agreement if that failure is due to causes beyond its reasonable
control including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of terrorism, fires, floods, windstorms
earthquakes, labor disputes or governmental acts.

7.7  Notices and Reporting. The parties agree to accept electronic service of
all notifications and reporting, except original service of process. The parties may elect to
transmit notices or reports electronically by transmitting such correspondence to the e-mail
addresses stated herein below, or to the mailing address stated herein below via United States
Postal Service (“USPS”) First Class postage prepaid. Any notice or reporting required or
otherwise given via USPS under this Agreement will be considered delivered or given when
actually delivered or 48 hours after being deposited in the U.S. Mail as certified mail. Any
notice or reporting required or otherwise given via electronic mail prior to 5:00pm shall be
considered delivered on the date sent. Otherwise such electronic mail shall be considered
delivered as of 9:00 am on the next business day following electronic transmission.

To PHD2:

Zoe Reese, Director of Community Impact and Grantmaking
Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County

4710 196™ Street

Lynnwood, WA 98036

Zoe.reese@verdanthealth.org

To REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST:
Van Dinh-Kuno, Executive Director

Refugee & Immigrant Services Northwest

2000 Tower Street Rainier Building, Room 228

Everett, WA 98201

7.8  Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned without the written
consent of the other party. Each party may consent to or decline a request for assignment by the
other party at the sole discretion of the party from which consent is requested.

<<Signatures on Next Page>>

32


mailto:Zoe.reese@verdanthealth.org

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3806C595-79CC-46F7-A2E2-71EA4BED6178

AGREED TO:

PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

DocuSigned by:

Liss Edwards 10/28/2021

A5B8D3675B774CD... Date:

Lisa Edwards, Superintendent

REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST

DocuSigned by:

Van Dinde—buns

EE608C6D42E4461...

10/28/2021
Date:

Van Dinh-Kuno, Executive Director

33



Committed Program Funding

as of October 2021

Committed Committed
2021 2022 Program End
7100 . Grants
Committed
Alzheimer's Association S - S -
Boys & Girls Club Healthy Habits S 221,250 | $ - Sep-21
Cascade Bicycling Club Advanced Basics S 32,000 | S 50,000 Dec-22
Center for Human Services Youth Counseling S 319,167 | S 233,333 Sep-22
Center For Human Services/CHS Integration S 68,820 | S 70,227 May-23
Center For Human Services/EFM Integration S 100,057 | S 102,058 Feb-23
ChildStrive Early Intervention/PAT S 326,813 | $ 82,121 Mar-22
ChildStrive Nurse Family Partnership S 297,052 | S 305,964 Dec-22
Cocoon House Prevention Program S 78,750 | S 26,250 Mar-22
Community Health Center County Dental Program S 100,195 | S - 9/31/21
Compass Health CP Program S 151,627 | S 88,449 Jul-22
Compass Health - Emergency Motel Vouchers S 20,250 | S 10,000 Mar-22
Concern for Neighbors Food Bank (MLT) S 8,230 | S -
Domestic Violence Services Teen Prevention S 16,700 | S - Aug-21
Domestic Violence Services South County Advocate S 96,000 | S -
Edmonds Food Bank S 20,000 | S -
Edmonds School District Move 60! S 746,207 | S 559,070 Aug-22
Edmonds Schools Family Resource Advocate S 180,000 | S 120,000 Aug-22
Edmonds Schools Student Support Advocate S 450,000 | $ 450,000 Dec-22
Edmonds Senior Center Enhanced Wellness S 115,992 | $ -
Evergreen Recovery Centers S 177,200 | $ 177,200 Jun-22
Foundation for Edmonds School Summer Meals S 20,000
Homage Senior Services Care Coordination S 143,620 | § 147,919 Dec-22
Homage Senior Services Center for Healthy Living S 628,095 | S -
Interfaith Family Shelter S 7,500 [ S 2,499 Mar-22
Kindering Early Intervention S 149,155 | S 37,500 Mar-22
Korean Women's Association Everyday Prevention S 60,000 | S 15,000 Mar-22
Lahai Health Dental Clinic S 402,970 [ $ 190,000 Jun-22
Lahai Health Mental Health Counseling Program S 58,900 | S 59,700 Aug-22
Lahai Health Mobile Medical Clinic S 183,000 | S 188,000 Dec-22
Latino Educational Training Institute S 54,000 | S 32,500 Sep-23
Latino Educational Training Institute-Family Success/Promot | $ 44,400 | S 44,400 Jul-22
Lynnwood Food Bank S 15,625 | S -
Millennia Ministries S 112,500 | S 27,356 Mar-22
MTI Mobile Dental Program S 72,900 | S - Sep-21
Pacific Treatment Alternatives S 106,205 | S 35,402 Mar-22
Parent Trust S 15,000 | S - Sep-21
Parent Trust Family Wellness S 15,000 | S -
Prescription Drug Assistance Program S 55,000 | S -
Project Access Northwest S 150,000 | S 87,500 Jul-22
Project Girl S 157,656 | $ - Dec-22

34




Committed Program Funding

as of October 2021

Snohomish County Legal Services S 37,500 | S 12,500 Mar-22
SSC Fire & Rescue Community Paramedic S 145,000 | $ -
SSC Fire & Rescue/OMF Veteran's Project S 92,260 | S 89,175 Dec-22
Swim Lessons (Edmonds, Lynnwood, MLT, YMCA) S 70,000 | S -
Therapeutic Health Services Youth Behavioral S 218,072 | S 93,072 Jun-22
University of Washington Bothell S 45,328 | S 45,328 Jun-22
VOAWW 211 S 76,400 | S -
Washington Kids in Transition S 62,500 | S 62,500 Jun-22
Wonderland Development Center Early Intervention S 150,000 | § 150,000 Dec-22
YWCA Children's Domestic Violence S 2,083 | S - Jan-18
YWCA - Emergency Shelter S 22,500 | S 7,500 Mar-22
YWCA - Healthcare Access S 46,984 | S 15,661 Mar-22
Total Committed S 6,946,462 | $ 3,618,185
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S 1,053,538 | $ 5,881,815
Total Grants S 8,000,000 | $ 9,500,000
7300 . Internal Programs
Committed
7301 Conferences & Forums S 29,000
7303 Nutrition & Physical Activity S 98,650
7304 Behavioral Health S 42,340
7305 VOAWW 211 Community Resource Advocate S 44,567
7306 Multicultural Health Programs S 50,679
7308 Social Worker Case Management S 6,000
7309 Health Screening & Education S 2,000
7310 Provider Training & CME S 10,000
Total Committed S 283,236
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S 54,659
Total Internal Programs S 337,895
7200 . Supt. Discretionary
Committed
Center for Human Services S 1,920 | S -
Compass Health S 91,632 | S -
Domestic Violence Services Snohomish Co S 26,737 | S -
Edmonds Community College Foundation S 287 | S -
Edmonds Community College Foundation S 12,060 | S -
Edmonds Community College Foundation S 40,000 | S -
Edmonds Food Bank S (5) s -
Jean Kim Foundation S (14,505)| $ -
Jean Kim Foundation S 52,182 | S -
Jean Kim Foundation S 60,000 | S -
Korean Women's Association S 69,128 | S -
WA Kids in Transition S 50,000 | S -
WA Kids in Transition S 28,571
LETI $ 45,993 | $ -
Foundation for Edmonds School District S 54,715 | S -

35




Committed Program Funding

as of October 2021

Lynnwood Sister Cities Association S 17,564 | S -
Medical Teams International S 34520 | S -
Medical Teams International S 19,830
South County Fire S 14,668 | S -
Trinity Lutheran Church/Cold Weather Shelter S 4,300 | S -
Helping Hands Project Organization S 76,650 | S -
Helping Hands Project Organization S 14,000 | S -
Helping Hands Project Organization S 62,499 | S -
City of Edmonds-LEAP S 66,000 | S -
Gambian Talents Promotion S 8,000 | $ -
Communities of Color Coalition S 50,000
Volunteers of America Western WA S 10,000 | S -
Brain Energy Support Team S 25,200 | S -
Wonderland S 2,563 | S -
Vision Hope Center S 21,000
Hand in Hand Kids S 10,000
Total Committed S 955,510
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S 44,490
Total Discretionary Programs S 1,000,000
7500 . Building Healthy Communities Fund
Committed
Sea Mar CHC - Lynnwood Clinic S 1,000,000 | S -
City of MLT - Evergreen Playfield S 1,000,000 | S -
City of Edmonds Civic Park S 107,750
Community Health Center (CHC) S 1,875,000 | $§ -
Total Committed S 3,875,000 | § 107,750
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S (2,090,000)
Total BHCF Programs S 1,785,000
7600 . Co-funding Opportunities
Committed
| S :
Total Committed S -
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S 100,000
Total Co-funding Opportunities S 100,000
7700 . CHART
Committed
| $ 55,033
Total Committed S 55,033
Not Committed (Available to Spend) S (51,433)
Total CHART S 3,600
|
TOTAL S 11,226,495
|

36




VERDANT COMMITTED GRANT FUNDS ($K)

m2020 m2021 m2022

-
o
n
™
%2
<
~
o
~
W
)
-
n
bl
g
g
~ m
© ©
! 1
S & a
(32}
=
o
)
~
2 g N
8 B 0 ] &
mn o n 0 D
©c 2 © w v N © ©
=] S ~ - a o =
v 53] - ™ < n o ™
@ B 8 =l 2 s
I w prd 23 v 00 I wr
A »
BEHAVIORAL CHILDHOOD FOOD HEALTHCARE DENTAL HOUSING OTHER SENIORS, UNALLOCATED
HEALTH OBESITY SECURITY ACCESS ACCESS PREVENTION COMM. PARA, FUNDS

CARE COORD.



Committed Program Funding

as of October 2021
Committed Committed
2021 2022 Program End
7100. Grants
Committed
Alzheimer's Association S - S -
Boys & Girls Club Healthy Habits S 221,250 S - Sep-21
SD Brain Energy Support Team S 25,200 S -
Cascade Bicycling Club Advanced Basics S 32,000 S 50,000 Dec-22
Center for Human Services Youth Counseling 319,167 S 233,333 Sep-22
Center For Human Services/CHS Integration 68,820 S 70,227 May-23
Center For Human Services/EFM Integration 100,057 S 102,058 Feb-23
SD Center for Human Services 1,920 S -
Center for Human Services Total S 489,964 $ 405,618
ChildStrive Early Intervention/PAT 326,813 S 82,121 Mar-22
ChildStrive Nurse Family Partnership 297,052 S 305,964 Dec-22
ChildStrive Total S 623,865 $ 388,085
SD City of Edmonds-LEAP 66,000 S -
BHC City of Edmonds Civic Park S 107,750
‘ City of Edmonds Total S 66,000 $ 107,750
BHC | City of MLT - Evergreen Playfield S 1,000,000 S -
‘ Cocoon House Prevention Program S 78,750 S 26,250 Mar-22
SD Communities of Color Coalition S 50,000
‘ Community Health Center County Dental Program 100,195 | S 100,195 S - 9/31/21
BHC Community Health Center (CHC) 1,875,000 | S 1,875,000 S -
Community Health Center Total S 1,975,195 S -
Compass Health CP Program 151,627 | $ - S 88,449 | S - Jul-22
Compass Health - Emergency Motel Vouchers 20,250 | $ - S 10,000 | S - Mar-22
SD Compass Health 91,632 | S - S -
Compass Health Total S 263,509 S 98,449
Concern for Neighbors Food Bank (MLT) S 8,230 S -
Domestic Violence Services Teen Prevention 16,700 | S - S - Aug-21
Domestic Violence Services South County Advocate 96,000 | $ - S -
SD Domestic Violence Services Snohomish Co 26,737 | S - S -
Domestic Violence Services Total S 139,437 S -
SD Edmonds Community College Foundation 287 | S 287 S -
SD Edmonds Community College Foundation 12,060 | $ 12,060 S -
SD Edmonds Community College Foundation 40,000 | S 40,000 S -
Edmonds Community College Foundation Total S 52,347 S -
Edmonds Food Bank 20,000 | S 20,000 S -
SD Edmonds Food Bank (5)] S (5) S -
Edmonds Food Bank Total S 19,995 S -
Edmonds School District Move 60! 746,207 S 559,070 Aug-22
Edmonds Schools Family Resource Advocate 180,000 S 120,000 Aug-22
Edmonds Schools Student Support Advocate 450 S 450,000 Dec-22
Edmonds Schools Total S 926,657 $ 1,129,070
Edmonds Senior Center Enhanced Wellness S 115,992 S -
Evergreen Recovery Centers S 177,200 $ 177,200 Jun-22
Foundation for Edmonds School Summer Meals 20,000
SD Foundation for Edmonds School District 54,715 S -
Foundation for Edmonds Schools Total S 74,715
SD Gambian Talents Promotion S 8,000 S -
SD Hand in Hand Kids S 10,000
SD Helping Hands Project Organization 76,650 | $ - S -
SD Helping Hands Project Organization 14,000 | S - S -
SD Helping Hands Project Organization 62,499 | S - S -
Helping Hands Project Organization Total S 153,149
Homage Senior Services Care Coordination 143,620 $ - S 147,919 | $ - Dec-22
Homage Senior Services Center for Healthy Living 628,095 | $ - S -
Homage Senior Services Total S 771,715 $ 147,919
Interfaith Family Shelter S 7,500 S 2,499 Mar-22
SD Jean Kim Foundation (14,505)| $§ - S -

38




Committed Program Funding

as of October 2021
SD Jean Kim Foundation 52,182 | S - S -
SD Jean Kim Foundation 60,000 | S - S -
Jean Kim Foundation Total S 97,677
Kindering Early Intervention S 149,155 S 37,500 Mar-22
Korean Women's Association Everyday Prevention 60,000 | $ - 15,000 | $ - Mar-22
SD Korean Women's Association 69,128 | $ - S -
Korean Women's Association Total S 129,128 S 15,000
Lahai Health Dental Clinic 402,970 | S - 190,000 | $ - Jun-22
Lahai Health Mental Health Counseling Program 58,900 | S - 59,700 | $ - Aug-22
Lahai Health Mobile Medical Clinic 183,000 | $ - 188,000 | $ - Dec-22
Lahai Health Total S 644,870 $ 437,700
Latino Educational Training Institute 54,000 | S - 32,500 | $ - Sep-23
Latino Educational Training Institute-Family Success/Promotora 44,400 | $ - 44,400 | $ - Jul-22
SD LETI 45,993 | S - S -
LETI Total $ 144,393 $ 76,900
Lynnwood Food Bank S 15,625 S -
SD Lynnwood Sister Cities Association S 17,564 S -
Millennia Ministries S 112,500 S 27,356 Mar-22
MTI Mobile Dental Program 72,900 | S - S - Sep-21
SD Medical Teams International 34,520 | $ - S -
SD Medical Teams International 19,830 | $ -
Medical Teams International Total S 127,250
Pacific Treatment Alternatives S 106,205 S 35,402 Mar-22
Parent Trust 15,000 | $ - S - Sep-21
Parent Trust Family Wellness 15,000 | $ - S -
Parent Trust Total S 30,000
Prescription Drug Assistance Program S 55,000 S -
Project Access Northwest S 150,000 S 87,500 Jul-22
Project Girl S 157,656 S - Dec-22
BHC | Sea Mar CHC - Lynnwood Clinic S 1,000,000 S -
Snohomish County Legal Services S 37,500 S 12,500 Mar-22
SSC Fire & Rescue Community Paramedic 145,000 | $ - S -
SSC Fire & Rescue/OMF Veteran's Project 92,260 | $ - 89,175 $ - Dec-22
SD South County Fire 14,668 | $ - S -
South County Fire Total S 251,928 S 89,175
Swim Lessons (Edmonds, Lynnwood, MLT, YMCA) S 70,000 S -
Therapeutic Health Services Youth Behavioral S 218,072 S 93,072 Jun-22
SD Trinity Lutheran Church/Cold Weather Shelter S 4,300 S -
‘ University of Washington Bothell S 45,328 S 45,328 Jun-22
SD Vision Hope Center S 21,000
\ VOAWW 211 76,400 | $ - $ -
SD Volunteers of America Western WA 10,000 | $ - S -
VOAWW Total 5 86,400
Washington Kids in Transition 62,500 | $ - 62,500 | S - Jun-22
SD WA Kids in Transition 50,000 | $ - S -
SD WA Kids in Transition 28,571 | $ -
WA Kids in Transition Total S 141,071 S 62,500
Wonderland Development Center Early Intervention 150,000 | $ - 150,000 | $ - Dec-22
SD Wonderland 2,563 | S - S -
Wonderland Development Center Total S 152,563 $ 150,000
YW(CA Children's Domestic Violence 2,083 $ - S - Jan-18
YWCA - Emergency Shelter 22,500 | S - 7,500 $ - Mar-22
YWCA - Healthcare Access 46,984 | $ - 15,661 | S - Mar-22
YWCA Total $ 71,567 $ 23,161
Total Committed S 13,374,959 $ 3,725,934




6,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

4,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

0.00

m 7100 - Community Programs - Grants
W 7200 - Superintendent Discretionary
m Total 7300 - Community Programs - Internal

7500 - Building Healthy Communities Fu

Jan-0Oct 21
5,691,057.17

940,238.01
153,846.40
3,187,500.00

Jan-0Oct 20
5,282,268.19

732,235.72
155,354.19
1,093,615.17

Jan-0Oct 19
5,416,476.94

12,000.00
208,802.60
358,917.00

40



Verdant Community Social Worker Highlights: October/November 2021

Case Management — continuing support for 13 clients.

CHART Leadership and Facilitation — October 1, 2021, was the official date of transfer of services. |
have continued to work closely with The Extra Step, to ensure a smooth transfer of services, warm
handoff of clients, and commitment to supporting clients’ progress.

This past month included weekly team check ins, monthly staff meeting, DEI Team Meeting, monthly
County Outreach Coalition, monthly Snohomish County Community Behavioral Health Committee,
Snohomish County Connector’s meeting, Snohomish County Vulnerable Task Force, and the
Homeless Policy Task Force.

| have worked 5.5 months at Swedish Edmonds, one day per week. | coordinate work between the
psychiatric unit (9W), the emergency departments behavioral health assessment team (BHAT), and
the hospital case management team. The goal is to begin to build rapport with clients before their
discharges, in hopes of obtaining better health and wellness outcomes outside of the hospital
setting. To date, 30 referrals since 6/01/21. Of 6 new referrals this month, 5 were consultations, and
referred to more appropriate resources. 3 are unknown status at this time as they did not follow up
with referral. As of today, | have 8 new active clients from this referral source, and 7 clients that
have not followed through after discharge. One of the new referrals from this source passed away
this past month.

Community Training, November 9. Event title: Mental Health 101: Mental and Addiction Disorders.
Of 57 registered, 27 attended. Very positive evaluations.

Completed the final Accountable Communities of Health (ACH) report for the Medicaid
Transformation Project, in which we included the CHART program as our main focus. We should be
receiving our final payment in December.

Coordinated and facilitated a panel discussion for the Edmonds College regarding HB 1310. The panel
included SSCF&R, Lynnwood Police and county Designated Crisis Responder (DCR). This was in
response to the colleges request on how to manage crisis situations at the college, should they arise.
If anyone is interested in watching this, | did record it.

With the increase in opioid related deaths, Verdant will be sponsoring several NARCAN trainings

during 2022. In partnership with Snohomish County Human Services Opioid Outreach and Molina
Health, we will provide three in person and one virtual training, and Molina will be providing free
NARCAN to participants.

43



Multicultural Report- October 2021

Verdant Sponsored Programs

Monthly Women’s Support Group

Third Wednesday of the
month 6:30pm

19 participants

Weekly Parent Support Group

Tuesdays 10:30am

23 participants

Programa Gratis de Frutas y Vegetales- SaludRx

1%t Saturday of the month

6 participants

Grupo de Apoyo para Mujeres Sobrevivientes de
Violencia Domestica

Bi-monthly- Wednesdays
6:00pm

7 participants

Community Collaborations

Con Confianza y En Comunidad: Hablando sobre COVID-19
y temas que nos afectan

Tues 5-7:30pm

29 participants

Health Equity for Immigrants Campaign

Every week on Mon, until
Dec, 2021

35 participants

Latinx Health Board

Every week on Friday’s at
1pm

19 participants

U of WA Peer Mental Health Planning Meetings

Thursdays at 2pm

6 participants

Community Health Board Coalition

Every Thurs 6-8pm

22 participants

COVID-19 Vaccine Implementation Collaborative

1x month- Wed 6-7:30pm

31 participants

44




Marketing Report
November 2021

Website Redesign

The new website is built on a staging server, and we are fine-tuning the functionality, content, and images in these final
weeks preparing for the launch on Dec. 13.

The Canopy

The winter edition of The Canopy newsletter is scheduled to arrive at the post office the week of Nov. 29. It will include
information about our community impact, a tease of the new website, information about grants that we fund, an
introduction to new Commissioner Carolyn Brennan, and more. This edition will be distributed to the 80,275 addresses
within our district.

Social Media

During the previous 4-week period, we welcomed new Social Media Intern Tina Sypaphay. She received training and
transitioned into the new role while embracing our work and has created some very strong content. During this period
of transition, we reached approximately 2,000 people with our posts, which is a decline from the previous month as we
had expected. We look forward to launching the website in the coming month and integrating this launch into our social
media posts.

Media Coverage in September

Date Publication | Headline URL
"Way to Go: Verdant
gives $1.4 million to https://www.heraldnet.com/news/back-to-campus-but-outside-
10/4/2021 | The Herald 11 groups" the-walls/
My "Verdant features
Edmonds classes for families, https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-features-
10/6/2021 | News teens in October" classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
"Verdant features
classes for families, https://mltnews.com/verdant-features-classes-for-families-
10/6/2021 | MLT News teens in October" teens-in-october/
"Verdant features
Lynnwood classes for families, https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-features-classes-for-
10/6/2021 | Today teens in October" families-teens-in-october/

"Learn about
Verdant's grant

My application process
Edmonds Oct. 11 during Q&A https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/learn-about-verdants-
10/8/2021 | News session" grant-application-process-oct-11-during-gqa-session/

"Learn about
Verdant's grant
application process

Lynnwood Oct. 11 during Q& A https://lynnwoodtoday.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-
10/8/2021 | Today session" application-process-oct-11-during-ga-session/

41


https://www.heraldnet.com/news/back-to-campus-but-outside-the-walls/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/back-to-campus-but-outside-the-walls/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://mltnews.com/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://mltnews.com/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-features-classes-for-families-teens-in-october/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/

"Learn about
Verdant's grant
application process
Oct. 11 during Q& A

https://mltnews.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-

10/8/2021 | MLT News session" process-oct-11-during-ga-session/
"Election 2021:
My Candidates for Public
Edmonds Hospital District No. https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-
10/11/2021 | News 2, Pos. 2" candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
"Election 2021:
Candidates for Public
Hospital District No. https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-
10/11/2021 | MLT News 2, Pos. 2" hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
"Election 2021:
Candidates for Public
Lynnwood Hospital District No. https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-
10/11/2021 | Today 2, Pos. 2" public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
"Election 2021:
My Candidates for Public
Edmonds Hospital District No. https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-
10/12/2021 | News 2, Pos. 5" candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
"Election 2021:
Candidates for Public
Lynnwood Hospital District No. https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-
10/12/2021 | Today 2, Pos. 5" public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
"Election 2021:
Candidates for Public
Hospital District No. https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-
10/12/2021 | MLT News 2, Pos. 5" hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
"A Change-Agent
Advocate for Social
Justice in Snohomish https://www.heraldnet.com/local-marketplace/a-change-agent-
10/14/2021 | The Herald County" advocate-for-social-justice-in-snohomish-county/
My "Verdant
Edmonds Commissioner Fred https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-commissioner-
10/20/2021 | News Langer steps down" fred-langer-steps-down/
"Verdant
Lynnwood Commissioner Fred https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-
10/20/2021 | Today Langer steps down" steps-down/
"Verdant
Commissioner Fred https://mltnews.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-
10/20/2021 | MLT News Langer steps down" down
"Pro-ivermectin, anti-
mask rally host runs https://www.heraldnet.com/news/pro-ivermectin-anti-mask-
10/30/2021 | The Herald for health board" rally-host-runs-for-health-board/

42


https://mltnews.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/
https://mltnews.com/learn-about-verdants-grant-application-process-oct-11-during-qa-session/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-2/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://mltnews.com/election-2021-candidates-for-public-hospital-district-no-2-pos-5/
https://www.heraldnet.com/local-marketplace/a-change-agent-advocate-for-social-justice-in-snohomish-county/
https://www.heraldnet.com/local-marketplace/a-change-agent-advocate-for-social-justice-in-snohomish-county/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://myedmondsnews.com/2021/10/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://lynnwoodtoday.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://mltnews.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://mltnews.com/verdant-commissioner-fred-langer-steps-down/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/pro-ivermectin-anti-mask-rally-host-runs-for-health-board/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/pro-ivermectin-anti-mask-rally-host-runs-for-health-board/

	PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON
	PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON
	CERTIFICATION
	PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON

	Program Committee- November 2021
	AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE COVID-19 RESPONSE: AFGHAN FAMILY NAVIGATION PROGRAM
	1. PARTIES
	2. PURPOSE AND PROGRAM
	3. AUTHORITY
	4. TERM AND TERMINATION
	5. OBLIGATIONS OF PHD2
	6. OBLIGATIONS OF REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST
	7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	AGREED TO:
	REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT SERVICES NORTHWEST


	VERDANT COMMITTED GRANT FUNDS ($K)

